
 

2026.02.17 Warner Select Board Meeting Minutes       Page 1 
 

            1 

  2 
 3 

Select Board Meeting Meeting  4 
February 17, 2026  5 

A.  5:00 PM – Open meeting / Roll Call  6 
Chairman Harry Seidel called the meeting to order at 5:04 PM.  7 
Select Board Present: Harry Seidel and Vice Chair Alfred Hanson  8 
Not Present at Roll Call: Mike Smith 9 
 10 
B.  Non-public Session, RSA 91-A:3 II (b) The hiring of any person as a public employee.  11 
Moved: Seidel Second: Hanson  Roll call vote:  Seidel: Yes   Hanson:  Yes  Motion Passed 12 
The Board went into non-public at 5:05 pm. 13 
 14 
C.  6:00 pm – Re-open meeting / Roll Call / Pledge of Allegiance  15 
Harry Seidel called the public meeting to order at 6:02 PM. The Pledge of Allegiance was recited. 16 
Select Board Present: Chairman Harry Seidel, Vice Chair Alfred Hanson  17 
Select Board via Zoom: Mike Smith  18 
Public Present: Judy Newman-Rogers, Martha Mical, Ed Mical, Harold Blanchette, David Carle, Elizabeth 19 
Labbe, Nancy Martin, Barb Marty, Russ Smith, Faith Minton, Bob LaFrance, Emilia Wisniewski and James 20 
Sherman. 21 
Public via Zoom: Truth Teller, Linda Leclair, Mark O’Neil, AA620384, Linda Dyment, Carols Fire, Ian 22 
Rogers, Mary Mead, Harv, Debra Mahar, cwalla, Rebecca Courser, Ipad 23 
 24 
D.  PUBLIC HEARING    25 
1. To Hear Public Input on a citizen petition:  Shall we adopt the provisions of RSA 32:5-b, and implement a 26 
tax cap whereby the governing body (or budget committee) shall not submit a recommended budget that 27 
increases the amount to be raised by local taxes, based on the prior fiscal year’s actual amount of local taxes 28 
raised, by more than 4%? (Submitted by Petition for the 2026 Annual Town Warrant)  29 
  30 
Harry Seidel opened the public hearing at 6:04 PM & opened the floor to public comment and questions. 31 
 32 
Bob Lafrance of Collins Road asked if the 4% is per year. Mike Smith stated that the way he reads it, it 33 
means the budget cannot exceed an increase of more than 4%.  34 
 35 
James Sherman of New Market Road stated that this year the Select Board and Budget Committee worked 36 
hard to keep the budget low.  He explained that the Town’s percentage of the total tax rate is roughly 31% 37 
and the Town cannot control the remaining 69%.  James Sherman stated that 2015 through 2025 the overall 38 
expenses in Warner increased annually 1.89% and capital increased 3%.  James Sherman stressed that the 39 
increase is in the portion of the tax rate that the town cannot control.  James Sherman explained that the 40 
largest increase came from the school. He noted that from 2015 through 2025 the school portion of the tax 41 
rate increased 76% and the town’s portion increased 23%. James Sherman explained that the cost to the  42 
school per student in 2017 was $20,000 and in 2023 it was $30,000 and he feels it is a tremendous increase.  43 
James Sherman explained that the State is not able to give towns and schools as much support as it has in the 44 
past. He referred to the elimination of the interest and dividends tax, reduced business tax and the elimination 45 
of the income cap for school vouchers.  James Sherman explained that 65% of public services are covered by 46 

TOWN OF WARNER 
     PO Box 265  

        Warner, New Hampshire 03278-0265                         

 Telephone: (603) 456-2298   Fax: (603) 456-2297  

Warnernh.gov    administrator@warnernh.gov     

selectboard@warnernh.gov           

 

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                 

   Select Board: Harry Seidel, Chairman 

Alfred Hanson, Vice Chair 

Michael J. Smith 

 Kathleen Frenette, Town Administrator 

 

mailto:administrator@warnernh.gov


 

2026.02.17 Warner Select Board Meeting Minutes       Page 2 
 

property tax. He stated that the state has put a moratorium on school building aid, reduced the rooms and 1 
meals tax distribution and revenue sharing.  James Sherman commended the Select Board for being 2 
conscientious when crafting the next town budget.  He referenced the 14% increase in health insurance, 3 
drastic increase in ambulance service cost to at $266,000, the increase in funds to the library at $435,000 due 4 
to the increased total town assessment, and high legal fees. James Sherman stated that a 4% tax cap would 5 
result in drastic changes in the Town of Warner for services.  Mike Smith thanked James Sherman for his 6 
presentation. 7 
No further public comment was offered. 8 
  Harry Seidel closed the public hearing at 6:15 PM. 9 
The Select Board had no further comment.  10 
 11 
Select Board Vote: Not recommend: 2-1 12 
Alfred Hanson:  not recommend    Harry Seidel: not recommend  13 
Mike Smith: recommend the 4% tax cap.  14 
 15 
Mike Smith informed the Select Board that the agenda posted says January 17th and it should read February 16 
17th. He questioned if this is a legal meeting. He stated that he brought this up but he did not hear back from 17 
anyone. Mike Smith did not respond when asked who he brought it up to and stated that he is looking for 18 
guidance. Martha Mical and James Sherman both stated that the agenda and public hearing were correctly 19 
posted at the Library and the newspaper making the issue moot. The Select Board agreed that it was a typo 20 
and the meeting will proceed. 21 
  22 
The Select Board voted to close the public hearing, Roll Call Vote Hanson YES Smith YES Seidel YES 23 
  Harry Seidel closed the public hearing at 6:24 PM 24 
 25 
E.  Select Board Business:        26 
 1. Department Heads:   27 
  a. Department of Public Works, Town of Warner Tree Policy  TABLED 28 
 29 
  b. Transfer Station, Department of Labor (DOL) Report   30 
Harry Seidel explained that the DOL is willing to work with the town on items that they would like to see 31 
improved.  Herm Blanchette Director of Public Works updated the Select Board on the steps being taken. 32 
 33 
Well/Water: Herm Blanchette explained that the well at the transfer station that feeds the Highway Garage 34 
and the State Shed needs to be addressed.  He explained that the water testing results show that it is very high 35 
in chloride, manganese and iron.  Herm Blanchette informed the Select Board that the prices for water 36 
filtering are approximately $4,000 per facility and then $150/month per facility.  Herm Blanchette stated that 37 
for the time being he has signed up with Monadnock Spring Water to deliver 5 gallon bottles/bubbler at a 38 
cost of $100/month.  Harry Seidel asked if the State has been contacted regarding sharing the cost of a new 39 
well.  Herm Blanchette stated that is his plan for a long term solution.  Alfred Hanson stated that even with a 40 
new well there will still be salt. Herm Blanchette explained that he will review the well contract and contact 41 
the State.  The bubblers are the short term solution and the DOL is agreeable.  42 
 43 
MSDS: Herm Blanchette explained that the Material Safety Data Sheets (MSDS) are being updated for 44 
posting. 45 
Steel plates: The steel plates for the loading dock need to be replaced, he received a quote for $4,000 46 
 47 
Lighting: Herm Blanchette inquired if the Select Board received bids for the upgrade of lighting.  Harry 48 
Seidel explained that a bid has been received from KLM for replacing the light fixtures.  Ed Mical suggested 49 
contacting Eversource to consider an energy grant.   50 



 

2026.02.17 Warner Select Board Meeting Minutes       Page 3 
 

 1 
  c.  Health Inspector:  2 
Elizabeth Labbe informed the Select Board that the State needs the Board’s signature on a form assigning the 3 
responsibilities of the Warner Health Inspector Chris Lopez to satisfy the state term expiration of the position 4 
that differs from the Town.  Nancy Martin stated that she has learned that the Warner health inspector is not 5 
certified which puts limitations on him. Nancy Martin questioned if it is possible to have him certified.  6 
Elizabeth Labbe will do some research. 7 
 8 
  d.  Audit Proposals for 2025: Two Proposals for Review 9 
Harry Seidel explained that two proposals were received from auditing firms. He noted that the proposals are 10 
very different in scope.  Harry Seidel recapped the proposals. 11 
Veroff CPA: is a small firm that mainly serves small towns like Dalton NH.  The cost is $10,750 12 
Vachon Clukay: has served Warner in the past. Harry Seidel explained that Vachon Clukay helped the town 13 
when it was in a challenging situation.  He explained that Vachon Clukay submitted a good report for the 14 
town with two items to improve (the MS434 and issuance of debit cards). Alfred Hanson asked how many 15 
towns Vachon Clukay serves.  Harry Seidel recapped many of their clients.  The cost is $34,250.   16 
 17 
Alfred Hanson explained his concerns regarding the Veroff proposal.  He stated that Veroff has very few 18 
clients and the bid is extremely low. Harry Seidel supports Vachon Clukay.  Mike Smith stated that he has 19 
not had enough time to review all the material.  Alfred Hanson explained that the decision does not need to 20 
be made tonight.   21 
 22 
David Carle suggested contacting the clients of Veroff CPA. Harry Seidel explained that he would like to 23 
select Vachon Clukay because they were there for Warner in a time of need. The Select Board agreed to 24 
revisit the discussion at the next meeting. 25 
 26 
 2. Rules of Procedure  27 
Harry Seidel explained that the Select Board has been reviewing suggested amendments to their Rules of 28 
Procedure. He stated that members of the community made an effort to submit amendments because they 29 
noticed that processes were not smooth. He stated that they felt that accountability, respect, integrity and 30 
cooperation could be increased and improved in the process that the Select Board uses.  Harry Seidel 31 
explained that the amendments have been reviewed and need to be adopted. He explained that the Select 32 
Board can make changes that they feel necessary.  Harry Seidel explained that the Chair of the ZBA and 33 
members of the Planning Board have submitted a few edits.   34 
Harry stated proposed edits.  35 
Page 1 Assignments of Select Board members to boards and commissions. Harry Seidel explained that there 36 
is not a Select Board ex officio member on the Zoning Board.   37 
Page 3 Select Board posting insert RSA 91. 38 
Page 11 Harry Seidel explained that Bob Holmes suggested inserting New Hampshire Municipal Association 39 
Legal Services for a resource for a legal opinion.   40 
Page 13 Committees/Liaisons: Harry Seidel explained that Barb Marty (Zoning Chair) questioned the 41 
amendment that gives the Select Board the ability to appoint an employee to be an ex officio, non-voting 42 
member.  He explained that she is questioning what if the employee does not want to serve.  Harry Seidel 43 
suggested adding “with their consent”. 44 
Page 14 Harry Seidel explained that Bob Holmes recommended corrections to a few typos. Removal of a 45 
hyphen and capitalizing letters. 46 
Page 17 insert if “if an issue or matter is discovered” 47 
 48 
Harry Seidel made a motion seconded by Alfred Hanson to approve the final version of the Select 49 
Board Rules of Procedure as amended on February 17, 2026. Roll Call Vote Hanson YES Smith YES 50 
Seidel YES 51 



 

2026.02.17 Warner Select Board Meeting Minutes       Page 4 
 

Harry Seidel thanked the members of the community for their efforts. 1 
 2 
 3. Cell Tower Update  TABLED 3 
Harry Seidel explained that additional information is still needed. He explained that it has been difficult to 4 
get the pricing of the repeaters.  He noted that the height of the tower is crucial. The Select Board agreed to 5 
table the discussion.   6 
 7 
 4. RSA 31:105, Primex Recommendations  8 
Harry Seidel explained that the New Hampshire Municipal Association has given a legal opinion that Warner 9 
should indemnify under RSA 31:105 increasing the level of insurance.  He stated that currently Warner is 10 
covered under RSA 31:106.  Harry Seidel explained that it is unlikely but adopting this could cause the Town 11 
to need additional insurance. Elizabeth Labbe explained that the attorney is referring to a situation where if 12 
Primex does not cover a claim, the Town agrees to step in and pay. Harry Seidel stated that NHMA  13 
recommends adopting RSA 31:105. The Select Board agreed to hold off on making a decision allowing the 14 
Select Board members time to think about it. 15 
 16 
 5. Town Land Sale Policy (Draft) TABLED 17 
Harry Seidel explained that he collaborated with residents of Warner to draft the policy. He stated that the 18 
RSA’s have fallen behind the case law.  Harry Seidel explained that he has spoken to Christine Last Name? 19 
from NHMA who forward two edits.  He explained that he needs to incorporate the two edits and bring the 20 
draft policy back to another meeting. David Carle stated that at the last meeting Mike Smith stated that he 21 
has the policy that is currently in place.  David Carle stated that it would be hard to consider a new policy 22 
without reviewing the old policy.  Mike Smith explained that he has the approved minutes and votes from a 23 
former Select Board.  He stated that he received the information from Judy Newman-Rogers.  Mike Smith 24 
advised the Select Board that Jonathan Lord in the past utilized the policy.  Judy Newman-Rogers agreed she 25 
had given Mike Smith the information she had and that Mike Smith stated at the previous meeting that he 26 
would forward that information that he has. Judy Newman-Rogers said she had not received the information.  27 
Mike Smith stated that he will forward what he has but would not have access to his desk where for another 28 
week. 29 
 30 
Harry Seidel explained that it was his understanding that in April 2021 a policy was drafted but meeting 31 
minutes do not show a vote between April 2021 and May 2022. Mike Smith stated that this Select Board can 32 
vote to adopt or change the policy. Harry Seidel read the recommendations from the NHMA: 33 
 Suggestion #1 pertains to Section 4C: please note that RSA 80:80, III requires that whenever the 34 
Select board uses as justice may require the authority to dispose of tax deeded property it first must by an 35 
affirmative vote find that disposal by this method other than sealed bid or public auction is in the best 36 
interest of the public.  37 
 38 
 Suggested edit #2 pertains to Section 2A: specifying that the Select Board will review the applicable 39 
statutory procedures for the sale of that particular property before doing anything further. 40 
 41 
Harry Seidel reiterated that Christine from NHMA has reviewed the draft policy and today she said the draft 42 
policy was great and recommended editing Section 4C and Section 2A. Harry Seidel noted that he 43 
questioned the 3-year time line for reimbursing the property owner for the difference between what is owed 44 
to the Town and the sale price.  Martha Mical explained that in the past the Town has always kept the 45 
property for at least three years to avoid having to reimburse the difference. The Select Board agreed to table 46 
this for further review. 47 
 48 
 6. Select Board Recommend/Not Recommend on Citizen Petitions   49 
  a. Outsource Payroll: “Shall the town vote to require the Select Board to outsource Payroll to 50 
one of the three companies it received quotes from in 2025 (ADP, CheckmateHCM or Paychex)”.   51 



 

2026.02.17 Warner Select Board Meeting Minutes       Page 5 
 

Harry Seidel acknowledged that other towns outsources payroll. He explained that Clyde Carson Finance 1 
Director uses a payroll system that integrated MTS the town’s financial system and it is designed to meet the 2 
State of NH requirements. Harry Seidel stated that outsourcing payroll will save less than 12 hours per 3 
month and could cost the town at least $10,000 in the operating budget.  4 
VOTE 2-1 Alfred Hanson: Not Recommend, Harry Seidel: Not Recommend, Mike Smith: Recommend 5 
 6 
  b. Publish Annual Audit Report Online and Address Deficiencies at a Public meeting:   7 
“Shall the town vote to require the Select Board to publish the annual town financial audit without redaction 8 
prominently on the town website within 7 days of receipt from town auditors and to further require the Select 9 
board to add a standing agenda item to their public meeting to address deficiencies reported by the 10 
Auditors”.  Harry Seidel explained that the audit report is available on the town’s website.  11 
VOTE 2-1 Alfred Hanson: Not Recommend, Harry Seidel: Not Recommend, Mike Smith: Recommend 12 
   13 

c. Support Public Input and Extra Time for a Mountain Bike Trail in Rollins State Park 14 
 on Mount Kearsarge  15 

Town of Warner Citizen’s Petition, construction of a multi-use downhill mountain bike trail on Mount 16 
Kearsarge. Whereas Warner taxpayers deserve the opportunity to provide input in the decision by the 17 
Statewide Trails Advisory Committee (STAC) to allow construction of a mountain bike trail at Rollins Park 18 
and state forest on Mount Kearsarge. Whereas no botanical or biological inventory has been conducted 19 
along the proposed trail routes and whereas no safety plan has been devised for this steep endro-sytle trial in 20 
the semi-wilderness landscape of Mount Kearsarge and whereas adjacent and nearby landowners have 21 
expressed concern about the subsequent unauthorized creation of spider trails onto private lands the scarcity 22 
of State resources to address this type of trespass. Whereas additional time is needed to ensure meaningful 23 
public input by the residents at Warner’s March 2026 annual town meeting. Are you in favor of respectfully 24 
urging that responsible state entities to deny further consideration of the current proposal until the above 25 
concerns and deficiencies have been met. 26 
 27 
Alfred Hanson asked Nancy Martin for an update.  Nancy Martin explained that the current State process 28 
does not allow for public input.  She explained there is one public hearing at the end of the review process. 29 
She advised the Select Board that the intent was to ask for a delay until all the studies and an evaluation of 30 
the conditions on the mountain were done. Nancy Martin informed the Select Board that the group has gone 31 
ahead with the process and they will not be conducting any environmental studies.  She stated that there is a 32 
plan to hold a site walk in the spring after the snow is gone but there is no telling where this will be in the 33 
process by then.  Nancy Martin stated that this has to go before 4-6 different committees. She stressed that 34 
the residents of Warner have not been afforded an opportunity to weigh in.  Harry Seidel explained that the 35 
Select Board sent a letter voicing their concerns. Nancy Martin stated that it is her hope that a vote at town 36 
meeting will be in opposition to the mountain bike trail. She did acknowledge that there are many who do 37 
support mountain bike trails.  Nancy Martin spoke about the potential costs to the town for emergency 38 
services. Faith Minton explained that there is no exit off the mountain, which has been a longstanding safety 39 
concern. She spoke about the financial impact this will have on the taxpayers of Warner.  Martha Mical 40 
stressed that the cost for the ambulance will fall on Warner. Martha Mical would like to see that the 41 
ambulance bills are sent to the person and not on the Town.   42 
VOTE 3-0: Alfred Hanson: Recommend, Harry Seidel: Recommend, Mike Smith: Recommend 43 
 44 
  d. Education Freedom Accounts 45 
Whereas, taxpayers have a right to know how their money is spent and deserve clear, verifiable evidence that 46 
it is being spent wisely and delivering results; and Whereas, taxpayer dollars are being diverted from public 47 
schools to private and religious education through Education Freedom Accounts (vouchers), and this shift 48 
does not reduce public school expenses, leaving local taxpayers to cover the difference through higher 49 
property taxes; and Whereas, unlike public schools, private education funded by taxpayers through vouchers 50 



 

2026.02.17 Warner Select Board Meeting Minutes       Page 6 
 

lacks key accountability measures, such as reporting how funds are used, tracking student performance, 1 
ensuring services for students with disabilities, and conducting background checks for staff.  Therefore, we, 2 
the voters of Warner, New Hampshire, call on our state elected officials to uphold their duty to fiscal 3 
responsibility by rejecting taxpayer funding for private education until we have full accountability, 4 
transparency, and a sustainable funding plan that ensures no further strain on public schools or local property 5 
taxpayers.  We further direct the Warner Select Board to deliver this warrant article and results in writing to 6 
New Hampshire's Governor and members of the State Legislature within 30 days of this vote.   7 
 8 
Faith Minton spoke in support of discussing this at Town Meeting. Mike Smith stated that he has 9 
not had enough time to form an opinion and he has gone “around and around on this”, he is unsure 10 
how to vote on this.  11 
VOTE 2-1 Alfred Hanson: Recommend, Harry Seidel: Recommend, Mike Smith: Not Recommend 12 
   13 
  e. New Emergency Management Revolving Fund  14 
Shall the Town vote to establish a revolving fund pursuant to RSA 31:95-h, for the purpose of supporting 15 
Warner's Emergency Operations Center activities beyond the normal operating budget for Emergency 16 
Management, and furthermore to raise and appropriate the sum of $6,500.00 to come from the 17 
unassigned fund balance. All revenue received for services supported by this fund will be deposited 18 
into the fund, and the money in this fund shall be allowed to accumulate from year to year and shall not 19 
be considered part of the Town's General Fund Balance. The Town Treasurer shall have custody of all 20 
monies in the fund and shall pay out the same only upon order of the Select Board and no further 21 
approval is required by the legislative body to expend. Such funds may be expended only for the purpose 22 
for which the fund was created. 23 
VOTE 3-0: Alfred Hanson: Recommend, Harry Seidel: Recommend, Mike Smith: Recommend 24 
 25 
  f. Service Disability Tax Credit  26 
Shall the Town of Warner vote in accordance with RSA 72:27-a to modify the provisions of RSA 72:35, 27 
previously adopted, for an optional tax credit of Two Thousand One Hundred and Fifty dollars ($2,150) for a 28 
Service-Connected Total and Permanent Disability on residential property? If approved, this article shall 29 
take effect for the 2026 property tax year. Explanation: HB 99 (new law) prohibits veterans who qualify for the 30 
Optional Total and Permanent Service-Connected Disabled Tax Credit (the "T&D Credit") from also receiving 31 
the Optional Veterans' Tax Credit. These used to be stackable, meaning a qualifying disabled veteran would be 32 
able to access both credits. As a result, unless municipalities take action, qualifying veterans will see an increase 33 
in their property tax bills beginning with the 2026 tax year. Municipalities may prevent this unintended tax 34 
increase by raising the amount of the T&D Credit to replace the value of the Optional Veterans' Tax Credit that 35 
veterans will lose starting April 1, 2026. Increasing the T&D Credit to $2,150 ensures that qualifying disabled 36 
veterans in Warner continue to receive a level of tax relief comparable to what they received prior to HB 99. This 37 
is done in the hopes that the Select Board recommends this action so that eligible veterans do not experience a net 38 
loss in their property tax credits because of the new law. The maximum allowable Optional T&D Credit has also 39 
been increased from $4,000 to $5,000 under the current statute. 40 

VOTE 3-0: Alfred Hanson: Recommend, Harry Seidel: Recommend, Mike Smith: Recommend 41 
 42 
F.  Public Comment  None 43 
 44 
J.  Select Board Other Business  45 
Harry Seidel explained that there has been a citizen’s request to change the order of business on the agenda 46 
and move “Select Board Other Business” up to follow “Public Comment”. Martha Mical suggested to move 47 
it up before “Public Comment”. The Select Board agreed to move “Select Board Other Business” before 48 
“Public Comment” on future agendas. 49 



 

2026.02.17 Warner Select Board Meeting Minutes       Page 7 
 

 1 
G.  Consent Agenda:  None 2 
 3 
H.  Manifest:  None 4 
 5 
I.  Select Board Meeting Minutes: February 3, 2026  6 
Page 4 line 48 through Page 5 through line 6 to be repositioned on page 4 after line 40. 7 
 8 
Alfred Hanson made a motion seconded by Harry Seidel to approve the February 3, 2026 Select Board 9 
meeting minutes as amended. Roll Call Vote    Hanson YES    Seidel YES    Smith Abstain 10 
 11 
J.  Select Board Other Business  12 
Alfred Hanson reminded the Select Board that they need to vote to recommend or not recommend the 2026 13 
monetary warrant articles. 14 
 15 
Shall the Town vote to raise and appropriate the sum of $5,057,709 Five million, fifty-seven thousand, seven 16 
hundred and nine dollars) as the 2026 Operating Budget for general municipal operations?  This amount does 17 
not include appropriations contained in special or individual articles addressed separately.  18 
VOTE 2-1 Alfred Hanson: Recommend, Harry Seidel: Recommend, Mike Smith: Not Recommend 19 
 20 
Shall the Town vote to raise and appropriate $15,000 (Fifteen Thousand Dollars) to be placed in the 21 
previously established Police Department Vehicle Capital Reserve Fund? 22 
VOTE 2-1 Alfred Hanson: Recommend, Harry Seidel: Recommend, Mike Smith: Not Recommend 23 
 24 
Shall the Town vote to raise and appropriate the sum of $125,000.00 (One Hundred Twenty-five Thousand 25 
Dollars) to be added to the previously established Bridge Repair/Replacement Capital Reserve Fund? 26 
VOTE 2-1 Alfred Hanson: Recommend, Harry Seidel: Recommend, Mike Smith: Not Recommend 27 
 28 
Shall the Town vote to raise and appropriate $100,000 (One Hundred Thousand Dollars) to be placed in the 29 
previously established Highway Equipment Capital Reserve Fund? 30 
VOTE 2-1 Alfred Hanson: Recommend, Harry Seidel: Recommend, Mike Smith: Not Recommend 31 
Shall the Town vote to raise and appropriate $25,000 (Twenty-five Thousand Dollars) to be placed in the 32 
previously established Transfer Station Equipment Capital Reserve Fund? 33 
VOTE 3-1 Alfred Hanson: Recommend, Harry Seidel: Recommend, Mike Smith: Recommend 34 
 35 
Shall the Town vote to raise and appropriate the sum of $30,000 (Thirty Thousand Dollars) to be added to the 36 
previously established Fire Fighter Equipment Capital Reserve Fund? 37 
VOTE 2-1 Alfred Hanson: Recommend, Harry Seidel: Recommend, Mike Smith: Not Recommend 38 
 39 
Shall the Town vote to raise and appropriate the sum of $50,000 (Fifty Thousand Dollars) to be added to the 40 
previously established Fire and Rescue Vehicle Capital Reserve Fund? 41 
VOTE 2-1 Alfred Hanson: Recommend, Harry Seidel: Recommend, Mike Smith: Not Recommend 42 
 43 
Shall the Town vote to raise and appropriate $32,500 (Thirty-two Thousand Five Hundred Dollars) to be 44 
added to the previously established Property Revaluation Capital Reserve Fund? 45 
VOTE 3-0 Alfred Hanson: Recommend, Harry Seidel: Recommend, Mike Smith: Recommend 46 
 47 
Shall the Town vote to establish a contingency fund for the current year for unanticipated expenses that may 48 
arise and further raise and appropriate the amount of $20,000 (Twenty Thousand Dollars) to be placed into 49 



 

2026.02.17 Warner Select Board Meeting Minutes       Page 8 
 

the fund? This sum is to come from unassigned fund balance.  Any appropriation left in the fund at the end of 1 
the year will lapse to the General Fund. 2 
VOTE 3-0 Alfred Hanson: Recommend, Harry Seidel: Recommend, Mike Smith: Recommend 3 
 4 
K.  Non-Public Session if needed (RSA 91-A:3 II (a-m) )  5 
None 6 
 7 
L.  Adjournment  8 
Alfred Hanson made a motion seconded by Harry Seidel to adjourn the Select Board meeting. Roll 9 
Call Vote Hanson YES Seidel YES Smith YES 10 
 11 
The meeting adjourned at 8:15PM 12 
Respectfully submitted on 2/24/26 by Tracy Doherty 13 
Edits, Judith Newman Rogers, Select Board Admin Asst. 14 
 15 


